
Direct Services to Crime Victims RFP 
FAQ 

Updated May 3 
  

Added May 3 
 
Q:  We are creating a new job description for a victim services advocate. Are there minimum 
qualifications we must include such as a college degree in Criminal Justice? 
 
A:  No. This is up to your office as you assess the types of jobs in your area, the going salary range, 
etc. It will be important to get the new staff person trained as quickly as possible, college degree 
or no. 
 
 
Q:  In our rural community the salary range is rather low compared to other parts of the state, 
while the fringe benefit percentage is very high. I’m worried about how reviewers will interpret 
this in our budget. What should we do? 
 
A:  Explain in the narrative the salary situation for your community and your county attorney’s 
office, and the going rate for fringe benefits. This way reviewers will understand what they see in 
the budget. Don’t make reviewers guess or assume – it’s better to explain your situation clearly so 
reviewers understand the unique factors in hiring in your community. 
 
 
Q:  Our victim/witness staff works closely with the two community-based victim service 
programs in our county. Both have crisis lines covered by volunteers. Could we use their 
volunteer hours to meet the VOCA volunteer requirement for our application? 
 
A:  No. Those volunteer hours will be counted by those two programs within their own 
applications, and they are technically their volunteers, not yours. 
 
Added May 2 
 
Q:  How do we incorporate annual personnel raises into our budget request? 
 
A:  Your application budget should reflect the expenses for which you are requesting funding for 
during FY17 (not for future years).  Being that your award will likely be the same for the 
subsequent 3-4 years, if you want your personnel line to increase in the future, you’d need to 
decrease some other line item you initially budgeted for FY17 to make that happen with OJP 
funds.   
 
 
Added April 25 
 
Q:  Our agency received Abused Children Program funding in FY16.  With the change in Program 
Standards, are we still eligible for that same amount of funding for FY17 even though the 
standards have changed to Therapeutic Intervention for Children and Youth Program?  Or does 



our FY 16 funding go away along with the Abused Children Program Standards and thus we 
should be applying for all new funding for FY17 through the Expansion Initiatives Addendum? 
 
A:  This is a competitive RFP process so there are no amounts that applicants are “eligible” for.  
Applicants can apply for any amount under any program standards (outside of new applicants for 
shelter standards). Current grantees that receive funding under the Abused Children Program 
Standards that are applying for funding to meet the Therapeutic Intervention and Children and 
Youth Program Standards in FY17 do not need to submit the Expansion Initiatives Addendum.  See 
the FAQ that was added April 1 for related information.   
 
 
Added April 13 
  
Q: If the need in my community is a need for additional emergency shelter beds, would 
additional shelter beds be eligible for expansion funding?  
 
A: OJP is not intending to increase the number of shelter beds funded in the state over the 
currently funded 662 beds statewide. While there could be some shifting of the number of funded 
beds between currently funded shelters in this competitive process, it is anticipated any shifts 
would be minimal. We are awaiting further information and recommendations from the MN 
Coalition for Battered Women and the group of domestic violence agencies working on ideas to 
best address the big picture of housing needs in Minnesota. These recommendations will help 
guide potential changes in domestic violence shelter funding from OJP.   
 
Addendum to this answer from April 7:  Although OJP is not increasing funding to shelters based 
on each shelter’s proportion of the 662 beds, shelter agencies can make their case for expansion 
of services funding through submission of the Expansion Initiatives Addendum section of the RFP.  
 
 
Q:  Does the expansion addendum need a financial match? 
A:  If you are a currently funded grantee, every dollar you are applying for that is in excess of your 
FY16 award amount needs to be explained in the Expansion Initiative Addendum and be included 
in your proposed budget.  Therefore because any expansion funds requested are part of your 
proposed budget, that amount is included in figuring out your match amount (20% of total 
request).   
  
 
Q:  Will the expansion addendum be read separately or with the other narrative? 
A:  The expansion addendum will be reviewed as part of your entire application but needs to, in 
itself, make the case for additional funding.   
 
 
Added April 11 
 
Q:  If a program who does not currently receive hotel/motel/safe home money wants to apply 
for HMSH dollars, do they need to complete Section F. Application Attachments, 3. Additional 
Statutory Requirements for Domestic Violence Shelters?   



 
A:  No.  Only domestic violence emergency shelter agencies with a shelter facility need to 
complete this section.   
 
 
Q:  We may propose a program for shelter for youth, up to 24 years old, who are victims of 
domestic violence, sexual assault or exploitation, or sex and labor trafficking. Do we follow the 
Shelter Program Standards or the Therapeutic Intervention for Children and Youth standards? 
The Therapeutic standards says “services may include… assistance accessing shelter”, but 
doesn’t specifically include shelter. Shelter program standards are very specific to victims of 
domestic violence.  
 
A:  Based on the service recipients this type of application would correspond to the Therapeutic 
Intervention for Children and Youth Program Standards, however this RFP will not cover the costs 
of opening a youth specific emergency shelter. That state funding is allocated to MN Dept. of 
Health for emergency shelter and services for youth sex trafficking victims. We appreciate that 
you want to expand in this way and we’re sorry that we do not have funds for youth specific 
domestic violence or sexual assault (not sex trafficking) emergency shelters. Please see a previous 
FAQ answer addresses the inquiry about more emergency shelter beds:  (“OJP is not intending to 
increase the number of shelter beds funded in the state over the currently funded 662 beds 
statewide….”)  
 
 
Q:  In the last competitive grant cycle you stated that the reviewers may be from other 
professions, not necessarily familiar with our programs, and that we should explain everything 
and assume they have no knowledge of victim services.  Should we assume that for this 
competitive cycle too or will you be looking for reviewers that are familiar with the grant 
programs? 
 
A:  We will recruit reviewers broadly and it’s like likely most will represent victim services 
programs or be part of the criminal justice system. It is important to describe your program and 
services thoroughly so reviewers understand who you are and what you do. Reviewers will 
already understand the harm that crime victims experience, so you don’t need to go into depth 
about the impact of crime victimization on individuals.  
 
 
Added April 7 
 
Q:  The old Abused Children Standards and funding under those standards goes away after 
September 2016, is that correct? Funding as of October 2016 will be under the therapeutic 
intervention for children & youth standards only?  
 
A:  Correct.  The Abused Children Program Standards will become Therapeutic Intervention for 
Children and Youth Program Standards for FY17. Funding will correspond to the new standards.  
 
 
Q:  In using the terms “therapy” and “therapeutic intervention”, you do not mean only formal 



therapy conducted by a licensed MSW?  
 
A:  Correct.  These services could be provided by a non-licensed person with appropriate training 
to meet the needs of victimized children and youth.  
 
 
Q:  Is a program that is headquartered outside of Minnesota eligible to apply if the program is 
providing services inside of Minnesota? What do they need to show in order to be eligible to 
apply?  
 
A:  Yes.  If the legal entity of the applicant is outside of Minnesota, the application needs to show 
that services will be provided at a specific location in Minnesota. 
 
 
Q:  If a government based program is doing the crime victim notification work (the duties 
assigned to the prosecutor’s office) but they are NOT under the county or city attorney office, 
are they only eligible to apply through the Direct Services to Crime Victims RFP or can they 
apply through the Prosecutorial Services to Crime Victims RFP?  
 
A:  OJP-funded government-based general crime programs that currently fulfill prosecutorial 
crime victim rights obligations per MN statute to address the needs of crime victims may apply 
under the Prosecutorial Services to Crime Victims RFP.  Government-based applicants that are not 
housed in county/city attorney offices but currently fulfill prosecutorial crime victim rights 
obligations through an agreement with the county/city attorney’s office, and are not current OJP 
general crime programs should also apply under the Prosecutorial Services to Crime Victims RFP. 
(It would be assumed that in this case the county/city attorney would not also apply, as this would 
be duplicative services.) 
 
 
Q:  If the need in my community is a need for additional emergency shelter beds, would 
additional shelter beds be eligible for expansion funding?  
A:  OJP is not intending to increase the number of shelter beds funded in the state over the 
currently funded 662 beds statewide. While there could be some shifting of the number of funded 
beds between currently funded shelters in this competitive process, it is anticipated any shifts 
would be minimal. We are awaiting further information and recommendations from the MN 
Coalition for Battered Women and the group of domestic violence agencies working on ideas to 
best address the big picture of housing needs in Minnesota. These recommendations will help 
guide potential changes in domestic violence shelter funding from OJP. 
 
 
Added April 1 
 
Q:  Do you want to see wage increases in the expansion addendum, along with their priority, 
justification and reasoning for the priority, or should those just be reflected in the budget?  For 
example, we are increasing the hourly rate of our relief staff to a more competitive market 
wage in FY17.  This specifically is an expansion of the budget compared to FY16, but not in # of 
positions or service area.  
  



A:  If the total funding amount for which you are applying is higher than your FY16 grant, you will 
need to complete the expansion initiative addendum.  That said, you have flexibility in how you 
budget your FY16 award amount in your FY17 proposed budget as long as you are addressing the 
same program types in the same service areas.  So, you could either a) budget your FY17 wage 
increases within that FY16 award amount while decreasing other lines you had budgeted in 
FY16 and use the expansion initiative addendum to make your case for some other area of 
expansion, or b) budget your FY16 award amount similarly for FY17 and use the expansion 
initiative addendum to make your case for the salary increases.  The bottom line is that your 
expansion initiative addendum needs to justify/prioritize every dollar you are requesting over 
your FY16 award amount.   
 
 
Added March 25 
 
Q:  Will there be Emergency Funds distributed July 2016? 
 
A:  Emergency fund grants in their old form will discontinue starting July 2016. There will be some 
additional funds made available for the same types of uses through a small number of agencies 
from July 1 – Sept. 30, 2016, to the start of FY17 (Oct 1). However, if you are also a direct services 
grantee and have budgeted funds in the “direct client assistance” line of your FY16 budget, you 
should spend down emergency funds first (which expire June 30th), and then utilize funds from 
that budget line. If you didn’t budget any funds in that line and want to move funds around in 
your budget, call your grant manager for assistance. 
 
In other words, OJP is discontinuing separate emergency fund grant contracts to the 61 
emergency fund grantees and instead continuing to allow funds to be part of direct service 
grantee budgets under the “direct client assistance” line. This allows grantees to move funds in 
and out of the “direct client assistance” line if the victims’ needs they cover vary from their 
original budgeted amount. This also expands funds for victim needs to all direct service funded 
agencies. 
 
Grantees used to receiving an emergency fund grant need to apply for FY17 direct service funding 
(in any of the 3 RFPs listed below). Applicants should budget grant funds for victim needs in the 
“direct client assistance” budget line. Please call your grant manager if you have questions. 
 
Note:  These RFPs are the only opportunity for direct service funding to meet crime victim needs 
starting FY17. 
 

• Direct Services to Crime Victims   
• Prosecutorial Services to Crime Victims    
• Tribal Government-based Crime Victim Services Grants (not released as of 3/25) 

 
 
Q:  In the Community Outreach section of the CVS RFP, where it asks for Specific Outreach to 
Underserved, can I talk about how we will use a new multi-cultural position that we want to 
hire in FY17 for specific outreach to an underserved community, or do you only want listed here 
what we CURRENTLY do, and then talk about that new position and its purpose only in the 



expansion initiatives addendum?  It refers to FY17, so I'm unclear if this is where I can start 
talking about expansion.  I've gotten the impression that in all previous questions, it does not 
want narrative about expansion pieces.  
 
A:   The Community Outreach section is fully about your plans for FY17, thus you should talk about 
that new position and the ways it will allow you to expand community outreach. The Community 
Outreach section is asking HOW you’re going to accomplish additional things. The Expansion 
Initiatives Addendum (section b) asks you to justify WHY you need the expansion. These are very 
different questions.  
 
 
Q:  Prior to this competitive submission, our match portion was significantly lower and we are 
wondering if 20% is now the standard that we will be held to for this and future submissions?  
 
A:  In your application we are asking you to show that you could meet a 20% match (on the total 
funding request) or to submit a waiver indicating how much of a 20% match you could provide.  
Those awarded under this RFP will know what their match requirement will be moving forward 
into the next 3-4 renewal grant periods (likely no more than 20% of award), however, determining 
that figure initially includes several factors.  If funded, the actual amount of match that will be 
included in your final budget to report on will depend on the full spectrum of grants awarded in 
this process.  The factors in grantees’ match requirement will depend on their final award 
amount, the array of program types for which they are funded and the amount of federal and 
state sources available to fund those program types.  Most funded applications will require match 
budget revisions before award.   
 
 
Added March 24 
 

Q: Why are the Crime Victim Legal Resource Program Standards limited to 3 current OJP 
grantees? 

 
A: The opportunity for expansion of legal services for crime victims will likely be part of the 
VOCA pilot project RFP process in 2017, referred to on page 4 of the RFP. The new Crime Victim 
Legal Resource Program Standards are for the 3 current OJP legal services grantees to use for 
application under this RFP for their current programming. 

 
 

Q: On page 3, under Types of Program Standards, it refers to “Therapeutic Intervention for 
Children & Youth.” The paragraph above that under Program Activities, has a link to the 
standards, and it contains one for “Abused Children” which we used to receive funding for, 
but are not currently. Are these the same thing or different things? And how do we go about 
deciding whether to select those standards? 

 
A: The Therapeutic Intervention for Children and Youth Program Standards is an expansion of 
the previous version of Abused Children Program Standards, to incorporate broader services to 
youth, and for applicants from agencies that exclusively serve youth. Children and youth 
experiencing sexual and domestic violence can continue to be served by programs under the 
current sexual assault, domestic violence and general crime standards – these standards cover 



all ages and one doesn’t need a specific abused children grant to serve children and youth as 
part of their broader programming. If an applicant wants to apply for separate programming 
solely focused on children/youth initiatives, it is advisable to select the new standards. The 
paragraph on the website about Abused Children programming is there as a type of program 
because it is currently funded. After this competitive RFP is complete the website will be 
changed to reflect the new broader category. 

 
 

Q: On page 11, it refers to needing an “Administrative capacity and risk assessment review” 
before the grant becomes operational. Is this the “Comprehensive Site Visit” conducted by 
our OJP grants manager? 

 
A: No, this is different than a comprehensive site visit. Upon being awarded and prior to a grant 
contract being released, grant managers complete this assessment for each grantee based on 
review of financial documents, amount of award, administrative capacity and the complexity of 
budget and funded activities. The assessment impacts how often formal grant monitoring 
occurs, specifically comprehensive site visits and desk reviews. This process complies with 
recommended federal guidelines for grant monitoring practices by state agencies. 

 

Q: Re Volunteers: The only volunteers we use are at the county fair booth. Since we are not a 
24-hour service, we collaborate with the Crisis Line & Referral Service whose phone number 
we provide on our voicemail for after hour services. Other than that, we do not use volunteers 
due to confidentiality. If we apply for a waiver, will it go against us? 
 

A:  While not quite fulfilling the VOCA intent of ongoing volunteer support, the volunteers at 
the booth qualify as volunteers and you will not need a waiver, just an explanation of the work 
those volunteers do. Requesting a waiver for the volunteer requirement doesn’t “go against 
you.” Grant managers will, however, explore with those requesting waivers if there is some way 
that a volunteer could be used, even once. It’s preferable to have that situation than many 
waivers in the grantee files. If no use of volunteers can be found or the agency has a policy 
against volunteers due to confidentiality or something else, we will grant a waiver. Waivers are 
good for the one-year grant period. 
 

 
Q: Re Match: 20% will be difficult, especially for our small agency. I plan to apply for other 
grants, however, if I can’t secure enough, can I apply for the waiver at a later date? Or, is it 
better to apply for the waiver now and change it later? 
 
A: It is better to apply for a waiver now with your application if you think you may not be able to 
meet the match requirement. There is no shame in requesting a match waiver – request it if you 
need it. 
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